MINUTES

Joint Elected Officials
Eugene City Council/Springfield City Council/Lane Board of County Commissioners
McNutt Room-—Eugene City Hall

July 15,2008
Noon

EUGENE CITY COUNCILORS PRESENT: Betty Taylor, Bonny Bettman, Jennifer Solomon, Mike
Clark, Alan Zelenka, Chris Pryor, George Poling. Andrea Ortiz was
excused.

SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCILORS PRESENT: Christine Lundberg, Hillary Wylie, Anne Ballew, Joe
Pishioneri, Dave Ralston. John Woodrow was excused.

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Faye Stewart, Bobby Green, Peter Sorenson, Bill Fleenor. Bill Dwyer
was excused.

Call to Order — Three Governing Bodies
Her Honor Mayor Kitty Piercy opened the meeting of the Eugene City Council and welcomed everyone.

Chair for the Board of County Commissioners Faye Stewart opened the meeting of the Lane Board of
County Commissioners. He acknowledged that Commissioner Dwyer had a meeting conﬂlct and was
excused from the Joint Elected Officials meeting.

His Honor Mayor Sid Leiken convened the meeting of the Springfield City Council.

Mayor Piercy indicated that the Joint Elected Officials (JEO) would be joined by Coburg Mayor Judy
Volta.

A. WORK SESSION:
Regional Transportation Planning

Eugene City Manager Jon Ruiz said the JEO had last discussed regional transportation issues in its
meeting in May. He reported that since then local jurisdiction staff had been working together with state
agencies to develop a regional transportation planning work plan to present to the Land Conservation and
Development Commission (LCDC) in October for its approval. He hoped to garner JEO input on the
draft plan.

Rob Inerfeld, Transportation Planning Manager for the Eugene Public Works Department, stated that the
Metropolitan Policy Committee (MPC) had adopted an updated federally required Regional Transporta-
tion Plan (RTP) in November, 2007. He said this had triggered a requirement that the TransPlan, the
state-mandated transportation system plan for Eugene, Springfield, and metropolitan Lane County, should
be made consistent with the RTP or that the jurisdictions should present a work plan to the LCDC for
making TransPlan consistent with the RTP. He noted that the City of Coburg had its own Transportation

‘MINUTES—]Joint Elected Officials— July 15, 2008 Page 1
Lane Board of County Commissioners and Eugene and Springfield City Councils



System Plan (TSP) and had made a finding that it was consistent with the RTP. He said aside from
Coburg the other local jurisdictions did not make a finding of consistency for a number of reasons. He
conveyed staff’s recommendation that they take the work plan approach. He said since the MPC adoption
of the RTP, staff for the local jurisdictions had met with the Oregon Department of Transportation
(ODOT) and the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) to develop a draft work
plan that was coordinated with local land use efforts.

Mr. Inerfeld stated that the work plan was divided into three elements, short-term, medium-term, and
long-term actions. He explained that the short-term actions would address more immediate concerns from
DLCD and ODOT regarding RTP TransPlan consistency and included deleting the completed projects
from the TransPlan project list, extending the TransPlan planning horizon, and elimination of language
addressing the West Eugene Parkway (WEP). He said the mid-term actions could be initiated prior to the
LCDC meeting and included a decision on whether Springfield and Eugene would have their own TSP or
whether they would continue to have a shared TSP and a shared Regional Transportation System Plan
(RTSP). He noted that another issue was to determine whether the four ODOT facility projects that had
been moved from the illustrative list to the financially constrained list in the RTP should be moved from
the one list to the other in the TransPlan. He related that the long-range regional transportation planning
work plan that would lead to having both the TSP and the RTSP consistent with the regional transporta-
tion plan. He stated that at this point staff had identified the major developments of the long-range work
plan, but staff intended to refine this into a more detailed work plan that would be brought before the JEQ
in September.

In response to a question from Commissioner Sorenson, Mr. Inerfeld explained that TransPlan was a state
required plan and it would be important to coordinate the update to the TransPlan and any land use
planning work.

Commissioner Sorenson wanted to know about the federal requirement to have a consistent plan and
asked what that was called. Mr. Inerfeld replied that it was called the RTP.

Commissioner Sorenson asked if the jurisdictions would have to do the RTP and the TransPlan at the
same time. Mr. Inerfeld responded that the federal government required the RTP to be updated every four
years, with the next update scheduled for November, 2011. He said ideally that would be coordinated
with and would reflect the local land use and transportation planning that was done, so that when passed
by the MPC it would be consistent with local plans.

Eugene Councilor Bettman had not seen any public involvement in the outline. Mr. Inerfeld responded
that staff intended to have a public input component in the plan when staff returned before the JEO in
September. Councilor Bettman opined that there would be pressure in September to approve it; this
created a short timeline. Mr. Inerfeld said if the JEO needed more time it would be possible to request
more time.

Councilor Bettman asked if the language deletion regarding the WEP would delete the project from the
TransPlan. Mr. Inerfeld said it would not.

Eugene Councilor Zelenka arrived.
Councilor Bettman requested a memorandum from the Eugene City Attorney on the impact of not taking

the WEP out.- She understood that the Eugene City Council had taken action to delete the project from the
list and to replace it with other projects that had been “futured” to fit the TransPlan.

MINUTES—Joint Elected Officials— | July 15, 2008 Page 2
Lane Board of County Commissioners and Eugene and Springfield City Councils



Commissioner Fleenor said Lane County was contemplating “doing a Lane County coordinated
population forecast” and was looking at the MetroPlan to see whether it needed to be updated due to the
passage of House Bill (HB) 3737, Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 221.222, and the new Oregon
Administrative Rule (OAR) 660. He questioned if this was a good time to take a look at the TransPlan
given these activities. Mr. Inerfeld responded that there were elements to the TransPlan update they could
take a look at. He said the important thing would be to do things in a coordinated way and to be flexible.

Commissioner Fleenor asked if a population forecast would have “major ramifications” on the transporta-
tion infrastructure moving forward. Mr. Inerfeld responded that he was providing the shape of what kinds
of changes could come out of the land use planning effort.

Commissioner Fleenor opined that with increasing gas prices there would be fewer people on the roads.
He wondered if that would have an impact on transportation needs in the future.

Councilor Bettman asked if there had been an opportunity for the jurisdictions to weigh in on the whole
project list. She did not think the Eugene City Council had done so. She averred that when discussing an
individual versus a joint update, it seemed they were already doing individual updates. She asked why
they would move to a joint update and if they did move to a joint update would it not mean that they
would have to have a regional priority setting process. Mr. Inerfeld reiterated that one of the directions
staff was seeking was whether to pursue individual TSPs or a joint TSP. He said from a staff perspective
it made sense for each jurisdiction to have its own TSP.

Councilor Bettman declared that since the City of Springfield had pursued having a separate Urban
Growth Boundary (UGB) they had already split the land use component. She opined that two projects in
Springfield were being elevated and offered primarily to serve the expansion of the UGB. It seemed to
her that they were already moving in an individual direction and this decision had already been made.

Mayor Volta stated that the City of Coburg had an-individual TSP though it wanted to work collabora-
tively. She said to involve Coburg in the process that Eugene and Springfield go through would put a big
strain on Coburg and did not represent what Coburg wanted to do. She thought there would come a time
when each jurisdiction would have its own plan, but she wanted to see it expedited as much as possible.
She would not want to have the transportation planning process held hostage due to the population growth
forecast that was being redone, something she was not certain was necessary.

Springfield Councilor Ballew clarified that the two projects Councilor Bettman referred to had been
included in the TransPlan since 1986 and were at least one mile away from the UGB. She wished to
dispute misinformation that was being disseminated.

In response toa question from Councilor Ballew, Mr. Inerfeld said rough projections indicated that the
regional population would hit 296,000 in 2023. He said if they did a full TransPlan update they might
want to use 2035 as the horizon year instead of 2015.

Commissioner Fleenor disagreed that the population forecast could be considered unnecessary. He
averred that there were contradictory interpretations of the forecast by the DLCD and local jurisdictions.
He felt that doing another forecast would provide certainty. He predicted that if the jurisdictions did this
individually they would be faced with multiple Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) “claims” and
multiple lawsuits in the Circuit Courts. He said HB 3436 gave jurisdictions an option to use safe harbor.
He had extrapolated that the legislature knew that this would be contentious. He opined that if they

MINUTES—Joint Elected Officials— - . July 15, 2008 ' Page 3
Lane Board of County Commissioners and Eugene and Springfield City Councils



moved forward as a united county to perform the coordinated population forecast they would be able to
move forward “faster and in a coordinated manner.”

Eugene Councilor Clark asked if there were consequences if the jurisdictions moved forward in a separate
way. Mr. Inerfeld replied that he was pretty certain that the RTSP would still have to contain facilities of
regional significance. He thought it would help each jurisdiction to have its own plan, adding that he was
not aware of any other jurisdictions in the state that had joint plans.

Commissioner Fleenor asked how revising or dispensing with the MetroPlan would impact the RTSP.
Eugene City Attorney Katherine Brotherton responded that the TransPlan was the functional part of the
MetroPlan. She said if the MetroPlan stopped existing as it stood today it would have impacts on the way
that the TransPlan would look in the future partially because it was implementing the transportation
element of the MetroPlan.

Commissioner Fleenor said he had analyzed the MetroPlan and he opined that it had no legal underpin-
nings; he was not certain it would be legally defensible. He averred that before they go any further they
should restore the underpinnings of the assumptions that they were working on and address the MetroPlan
first.

Mayor Leiken thought the two cities would still have to have a comprehensive plan. He agreed that it
would make more sense for the two jurisdictions to have their own plans except in the case of projects that
had regional significance such as the Interstate 5/Beltline Highway interchange. He believed that it would
make sense for the jurisdictions to continue their United Front efforts. He also had some issues with the
MetroPlan and felt it was worth continuing to look into.

Springfield Councilor Lundberg assumed that if the jurisdictions had their own transportation plans they
would still make decisions about regional facilities as they did now. She asked if this had been defined
and who would make what decision. Mr. Inerfeld responded that it was ot entirely clear where the line
would fall between what would be considered a regional transportation facility and what was not. He said
it had yet to be worked out between the local jurisdictions and ODOT where the line fell between what
should be in the RTSP, what should be in the local transportation plan, and what should fall under the
heading of both. He noted that the City of Eugene had an Arterial and Collector Street Plan that classified
the streets according to transportation needs as local streets, collectors, or arterials.

Tom Boyatt, Transportation Manager for the City. of Springfield, stated that Springfield was about to
initiate a street classification process.

Commissioner Fleenor said he wanted to “dovetail on the coattails” of Mayor Leiken regarding the
current financial circumstances. He reiterated his belief that a coordinated population forecast was an
essential building block by which they should begin this process. He opined that without such a forecast
any structure above this would be “susceptible.” He averred that they should take a slow approach and
ensure they had a solid foundation to work from in order to move forward 25 to 75 years ahead.

Eugene Councilor Pryor agreed that it would be appropriate to conduct the majority of transportation
planning at the local level. He observed that there were large transportation systems that had a regional
impact as evidenced by the large amount of traffic traveling from east to west and vice versa during rush
hours. He said defining what that level would be and how the systems would interface would be the
exercise that would have to be undertaken. He was more concerned about what the underpinning

MINUTES—Joint Elected Officials— July 15, 2008 Page 4
Lane Board of County Commissioners and Eugene and Springfield City Councils



assumptions each of the jurisdictions would be making and the degree to which they would agree or
disagree about them would be. He wanted to work out a way to coordinate the underlying assumptions.

Councilor Bettman questioned whether the underpinning assumptions could be coordinated. She asserted
that the City of Eugene was trying to build more densely and the City of Springfield was building out at
50 percent of allowable density. She declared that those assumptions were “extremely different” and she
could not see how they could be coordinated. She thought the Metro Plan should be included in the work
plan as it contained the land use assumptions that dictated transportation assumptions and the projects.
She opined that they would have to be individual plans because the two jurisdictions no longer shared an
Urban Growth Boundary (UGB).

Springfield Councilor Ralston agreed with the assumption that the Metro Plan was no longer useful or that -
there were components of it that were no longer useful. He supported separate TSPs and averred that if
the Regional Transportation Plan took care of the large projects that related to both communities it would
beg the question how important the TransPlan would be. He felt that if the MetroPlan was invalid, then it
would make the TransPlan invalid, especially if the two jurisdictions developed their own plans. He
‘'wanted to know why the TransPlan was important. Mr. Inerfeld responded that the TransPlan was what
was considered the TSP and the RTSP at this time. He said they could make TransPlan the name of the
RTSP, which was required by the State or it could be called by another name.

Commissioner Sorenson remarked that the County had a sense of urgency about economizing the plan so
that the federal, state, and regional requirements should be pulled together. He agreed that a local facility
that affected one community should be handled locally. He related that the commissioners had directed
their staff to return in September or October with an estimate of how long the County had before it would
run out of its Road Fund. He predicted that for the County the brakes would stop on its financial ability to
participate in regional activities where the Road Fund was a principal source of funding. He was bothered
by the idea of not merging the federal, state, and regional requirements.

Mayor Piercy asked if Commissioner Sorenson was echoing Councilor Ralston’s sentiments. Commis-
sioner Sorenson affirmed that he was. He said they needed to keep doing the state regional work
separately from the federal regional work, but help from the County in certain projects was required by
federal and state laws and the jurisdictions would have to help the County look for ways to economize on
its participation. "

Councilor Ballew said before they made a decision about how to develop the transportation plans, whether
to do them individually or in conjunction with one another, there needed to be a clearer understanding of
the financial ramifications.

Councilor Zelenka averred that they were in danger of making three separate plans. He agreed that the
local and regional plans should be separate, but he hoped that in consideration of the County’s financial
constraints the state and federal planning would be combined into one plan.

Councilor Bettman did not want to take regional priority setting out of the purview of local decision-
making. She noted that federal funding sometimes required a local match.

Commissioner Fleenor encouraged his colleagues and the staff of the jurisdictions to realize that the area
could be in a persistent economic downturn that could last “years and even decades.” He also wanted to
encourage staff to “keep it simple, reduce the layers of bureaucracy, [and] reduce the policies and
procedures.” He predicted this would add less of a burden on taxpayers. He wanted things to be

MINUTES—Joint Elected Officials— July 15, 2008 , Page 5
' Lane Board of County Commissioners and Eugene and Springfield City Councils



simplified and made less expensive. He said they needed a simple understandable transportation system
plan that was affordable.

Mayor Piercy observed that transportation planning was complicated for the public. She did not think
people understood how or why to participate in the planning.

Councilor Zelenka agreed that having the public get involved at the local level and having that inform the
regional plan would be good. He remarked that public involvement was broken and the “usual suspects”
came to meetings to provide testimony. He noted that the Citizen Advisory Committee for the Metropoli-
tan Policy Organization (MPO CAC) had been charged with bolstering public involvement.

Eugene Councilor Taylor thought the reason people did not participate sometimes was that they did not
recognize they had an impact. She opined that this was especially true regarding the Metropolitan Policy
~ Committee (MPC). She felt that people were closer to their councilors than to members of the inter-
jurisdictional group and would be more comfortable providing input locally.

Councilor Bettman opined that the MPO CAC had been “morphed into” a marginalized committee that
was in charge of telling the MPC “how to have a nicer forum or better ads in the newspaper.” She
declared that this was not the intended role for the MPO CAC; it was to be a body to provide public input.

Councilor Zelenka averred that it took perseverance to participate in this kind of planning. He felt they
should redouble efforts at the local level to involve not just the institutionally financed groups but also the
regular citizens.

Councilor Ballew observed that a better job could be done at the local level to garner public input when
putting together the Capital Improvement Programs (CIPs). '

Councilor Ralston noted that amending the TransPlan so that the completed projects were deleted was part
of the short-term goals. He thought they ought to consider the TransPlan the RTP and update it so that
they would not have to change all of the documents that referred to it.

Councilor Ballew did not see anything in the short-term actions that were objectionable. She also did not
think the mid-term actions were unreasonable.

Councilor Bettman said Eugene City Manager Jon Ruiz should take from the discussion what the decision
points should be and then the council should have a work session in order to make those decisions. She
thought the decisions could then be forwarded to the JEO.

Commissioner Fleenor concurred.

Mayor Piercy surmised that each group would return to their jurisdictiohs and make the decisions and
then reconvene as the JEO.

MINUTES—Joint Elected Officials— July 15, 2008 Page 6
Lane Board of County Commissioners and Eugene and Springfield City Councils



